
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
11400 Robinwood Drive  Hagerstown, MD  21742-6514 

 
 
RFP HCC25-006 Merchant Services 
 
 
Addendum 1, posted on June 30, 2025, consists of questions received before the deadline. 
 
 
Questions & Answers: 
 
Q1: What is your current checkout process?  

o Software, terminals, online ecommerce checkout, pay now buttons? 
 
A1: We currently use Software and Online Ecommerce. 
 
 
Q2: Is Payflow Pro integrated with any programs or software and will you continue 
 using it along with Touchnet/ACI? 

o Are you choosing Touchnet and ACI or only one vendor? If so, which? 
 
A2: We are planning on sunsetting Payflow Pro and will choose one vendor based on the 
 processor. 
 
 
Q3: Do you need pin-based debit card services?  

o The RFP mentions needing chip/card readers how many are needed and 
where? 

o Which accounts will require these Face-to-Face transaction methods? 
 
A3:  Yes, we will need pin-based debit card services. We currently will need 3 chip/card 

readers for placement at the Dental Hygiene clinic, Campus Store, and Finance 
office. All 3 will have FACE-to-FACE transactions as well as non FACE-to-FACE 
transactions. There may be a need for additional ones in the future. 

 
 
Q4: What are the payments accepted for? (tuition, events, books, cafeteria) 

o Do you have or need gift or loyalty programs? 
 
A4: Tuition/fees, campus store purchases (books and merchandise), and dental hygiene 

services. 
 



 
 

Q5: Can we see processing statements from Fulton and Paypal? 
o An accurate proposal will include the breakdown of card types, not just the 

network. For example: 
 The RFP references 3.4 million was processed annually though the 

Visa network and they are asking for the quote of the cost, however 
the card types could fall into hundreds of different categories such as 
rewards, regulated debit/check, purchase cards and more. In order to 
accurately quote the cost, we need to see how the cards fall within 
interchange. Or we can only quote what is charged above interchange 
and we don’t think that’s what they are looking for.  

 It is also important to see the statements for each separate account 
and each one will have a different average ticket.  

• Tuitions may be paid with credit/reward or business cards. 
• Smaller tickets for books, events or cafeteria may get more 

consumer and check cards. 
 
A5: Yes, we can provide merchant statements from Fulton. It has been attached to this 
 Addendum. 
 
 
Q6: How many accounts do you require?  

o The RFP mentions separate settlement accounts; they would need to have a 
merchant account for each settlement account. 

 
A6: Currently we have 3 separate merchant accounts. 
 
 
Q7: The term "Bank" is referenced multiple times throughout the RFP. I seek 
 clarification on whether Hagerstown is pursuing a new banking partner or a 
 merchant service provider to collaborate with its current financial institution. 
 
A7: We are pursuing a merchant service provider to collaborate with our current 
 financial institution. 
 
 
Q8: We are capable of fulfilling most of the suggestions outlined in the RFP. While 
 online services are relatively straightforward, reprogramming equipment presents 
 certain challenges. Therefore, it would be beneficial to obtain further details 
 regarding the specific equipment requirements and the number of terminals needed. 
 Additionally, it is important to recognize that software compatibility can vary, 
 whether it concerns a desktop card reader or a comprehensive point-of-sale (POS) 
 system. 
 
A8: Three (3) terminals are needed. Two (2) are desktop card readers and one (1) is POS 
 system. 
 
 



 
 

Q9: Do you wish us to respond to the requirements in section 2-Scope of Services? If so, 
 where in our response should those be included? Should we answer those in the 
 same section as the Technical Proposal Questions in Attachment A? 
 
A9: It is not required to address each of the requirements in section 2, Scope of Services. 
 However, if firms have any requirements from this section that they wish to address, 
 they can be included in the same section as the Technical Proposal Questions,
 Attachment A. 
 
 
Q10: Does Hagerstown wish to apply service fees to credit card payments? 
 
A10: The College would be interested in the possibility of adding service fees to credit 
 card payments and how this would affect the set-up. An official decision has not 
 been made. 
 
 
Q11: Regarding section 2.4, item w. on page 13, what type of equipment does the College 
 currently have? 
 
A11: Campus Store has a chip reader that is compatible with their POS system. The 
 Finance office and Dental Hygiene clinic are currently hand typing card numbers 
 into their software. 
 
 
Q12: Similarly, regarding the first bullet point under Technical Capabilities on page 22 
 (Identify if you can process transactions with our existing equipment, software and 
 gateways), can the College please provide a list of the software and gateways the 
 College is currently using? 
 
A12: We use Ellucian Colleague and Payflow Pro. 
 
 
Q13: Is DocuSign acceptable for the required signatures? 
 
A13: Yes, DocuSign is acceptable. 
 
 
Upcoming Deadlines: 
 
The proposal closing is July 7, 2025 at 10:00 AM. Offerors shall reference the RFP for 
submission details. Please pay careful attention to the requirement to be registered on Bid Locker 
in order to submit a proposal for this project. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Alicia Cullop 
Director of Procurement Services 
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